KINGS MOUNTAIN BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AGENDA
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 16, 2021
CITY HALL- COUNCIL CHAMBERS
5:30PM

(5:30) 1. Call Meeting to Order
(5:31) 2. Invocation
(5:32) 3. Pledge of Allegiance
(5:33) 4. Roll Call
Attendees: Chairman Doug Lawing, Jim Potter, Bill McMurray, Bobby Elliot, and
Maury Williams
Alternates: Ronnie Franks, and Phil Dee
Staff: Stuart Gilbert, Kimberly Herndon, Brian Finnegan, and Tinelle Wallace
(5:35) 5. Adoption of Agenda
(5:36) 6. Adoption of the January 19, 2021, minutes
(5:37) 7. Open Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial Case
VA-2021-1-14A
Requested Variance of front setback requirements from 50 feet to 20 feet in the
R-20 Zoning District for Parcel #50352 located at 114 Sir Lancelot Lane,
Kings Mountain, NC 28086
a) Staff Report- Notice of letter/notices
b) Testimony Vernon Baumrind owner of Janco Development, INC
c) Public Input
(6:00) 8. Close Public Hearing
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KINGS MOUNTAIN BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AGENDA
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 16, 2021
CITY HALL- COUNCIL CHAMBERS
5:30PM

(6:01) 9. Deliberation
a) Motion to Approve/Deny 4 Findings of Fact
b) Motion to recommend Approval or deny of a Variance Quasi-Judicial
Case NO. VA-2021-1-14A and to Authorize the Chair to send Official written
Notification to the Applicant
(6:15) 10. Open Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial Case
VA-2021-1-14B
Requested Variance of front setback requirements from 50 feet to 40 feet in the
R-20 Zoning District for Parcel #50350 located at 108 Sir Lancelot Lane,
Kings Mountain, NC 28086
a) Staff Report-Notice of letter/notices
b) Testimony Vernon Baumrind owner of Janco Development, INC
c) Public Input
(6:20) 11. Close Public Hearing
(6:21) 12. Deliberation
a) Motion to Approve or Deny 4 Finding of Facts
b) Motion Recommended Approval or Denial of Variance Quasi-Judicial
Case NO. VA-2021-14B and Authorize the Chair to send Official written
Notification to the Applicant
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KINGS MOUNTAIN BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AGENDA
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 16, 2021
CITY HALL- COUNCIL CHAMBERS
5:30PM

(6:25) 13. Open Public Hearing Quasi-Judicial Case
VA-2021-1-15
Requested Variance of setback requirements from 50 feet to 30 feet in the R-20
Zoning District for Parcel #50346 located at 135 Crown Ct., Kings Mountain, NC
28086
a) Staff Report-Notice of letters/notices
b) Testimony Vernon Baumrind owner of Janco Development, INC
c) Public Input

(6:26) 14. Close Public Hearing
(6:28) 15. Deliberation
a) Motion to Approve or Deny 4 Findings of Fact
b) Motion to recommend Approval or Denial of a Variance Quasi-Judicial
Case NO. VA-2021-1-15 and Authorize the Chair to send Official written
Notification to Applicant
(6:30) 16. Adjournment
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City of Kings Mountain
Board of Adjustments
Quasi-Judicial Hearing
Tuesday January 19th, 2021
Attendees
Jim Potter, Phil Dee, Ron Franks, Bill McMurray, Maury Williams, and Bill Elliot
Staff
Stuart Gilbert, Kimberly Herndon, Brian Finnegan, and Tinelle Wallace
Call to Order
Chairman Potter called the Planning and Zoning Board Meeting to order on Tuesday January 19th,
2021 at 5:40 p.m. Bill McMurray gave the invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance
The Board of Adjustments Board members and Staff recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
Adopt the Agenda
Chairman Potter called for a motion to adopt the agenda.
Ron Franks: Made the motion to adopt the agenda.
Maury Williams: Seconded the motion.
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand, the motion is carried. We are to open
a Public Hearing with Quasi-Judicial Case VA-1-7-20 500 South Railroad Avenue, on Tax Map
KM 10, Block 4, and Lot 2.
Public Hearing/Quasi-Judicial Case VA-1-7-20 500 South Railroad Avenue, on Tax Map KM
10, Block 4, and Lot 2.
Staff Report
Stuart Gilbert: Sir we have to affirm and swear first. Everyone that speaks at the hearing needs
to be sworn and affirmed first. We can do it one at a time since the Covid I guess.
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Swearing In
Tinelle Wallace: Do you Stuart C. Gilbert, solemnly swear to tell the truth and nothing but the
truth so help you, God?
Stuart Gilbert: Yes, The attorney doesn’t need to since he is a member of the bar, and other
people that are here.
Tinelle Wallace: Do you Melissa Allen, solemnly swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth
so help you, God?
Melissa Allen: Yes
Tinelle Wallace: Do you Carl Whaley, solemnly swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth
so help you, God?
Carl Whaley: Yes
Chairman Potter: Does anyone else that wishes to speak that needs to be sworn in?
Stuart Gilbert: Mr. Chairman first I ask a procedural question first before we start? You can go
into Public hearing right now I believe. There are 6 people here and the Board is 5. So, someone
needs to, we thought there were going to be 2 people who were late today so we thought the last
person here would be the alternate. So, we need to have someone be the alternate.
Ron Franks: I’ll do that.
Chairman Potter: Are you volunteering to be the alternate?
Ron Franks: Yes sir.
Stuart Gilbert: So the alternate listens in and doesn’t do anything unless somebody has to go. So,
I was just talking to the attorney for the petitioner just a few minutes ago. Just literally he brought
up some items and I think the best thing to do is just share it. And what to share is the fact when
they first, well let’s just put it this way as the property stands right now, After they do a
recombination of the property that the petitioner owns there will not be a need for a Variance
because the property will be set back far enough. It will be set back over 108ft., from 75ft., times
175 I think was 108ft. wasn’t it? I can’t remember what the number was.
Attorney Josh Rhodenstrike: Basically what has happen is the land owner has bought the
adjourning property in the last 30 days or so. The property that was an issue here for the 25ft. set
back. He now owns 2 parcels of land. I am prepared and absolutely more than willing to put the
Variance in front of the Board and let the Board rule on it, but at the end of the day, whenever, he
can he can combine the 2 parcels and now he owns everything that is around it that is in the
necessary hold back of the 75% requirement. So, the Variance motion is somewhat of a mood
point in whenever that can happen. We would like to get this done today. My clients have had to
pay for me to come from Greensborough now twice. I would like to get Variance. I do believe we
have met all the standards and requirements to get the Variance past anyway, but if the Board were
to find that we did not, my client, not my client, the land owner now owns the entire 2 parcels of
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land that more than clear the set back that is required. So, that’s kind of the issue we are, and I do
not know procedurally the best way to proceed, but we would kindly revert to whatever the Board
preferred to do.
Stuart Gilbert: We just found this out and I did not want to go through this meeting without
sharing this with you. He just shared it with me a couple of minutes ago. So, I think my senior
planner and I both agree with that assessment. Right this minute there would need to be a Variance.
Based on the information we have now it is not one recombined plat, but if they decide in the
future you were saying you would.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: The point would simply be that, that was required to put it there. I
think we could do that. I am happy to present the Variance as is, and I would believe that the fact
the same property owner, owns both sides of the line would make the Board more inclined to grant
that Variance and I‘m happy to present it that way so we can approve a Variance. I have just been
informed myself, that Mr. Whaley had bought the property in the past 30 days or so. So now he
does own.
Stuart Gilbert: Is that John Whaley?
Carl Whaley: No I’m Carl Whaley.
Stuart Gilbert: You are kin?
Carl Whaley: He is my father.
Stuart Gilbert: Alright
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I am happy to apply for the Variance. I think that may be the easiest
way to do it is to have the Board hear it. One piece of evidence the land that were asking for
Variance from is owned by the same individual, or one family the Whaley family. Which is why
Mr. Whaley is here.
Stuart Gilbert: So, that’s testimony too. As it speaks right now they could not get the Conditional
Use Permit even if they fixed legally the recombination plat until the conditions of the special use
permit would say it meets the conditions for not having the Variance.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Let’s do it this way, let me introduce the Variance and apply for it
at the appropriate time. Let’s just apply for the Variance that seems to be the best way to do this,
because then we can do it in the order that the Board intended to hear it when the agenda was
taken.
Stuart Gilbert: Usually though I have this evidence before 4 minutes before the Board meeting.
Phil Dee: Appropriate time to ask a question?
Stuart Gilbert: A procedural question, yes. Although this is a Public Hearing this is part of the
testimony in the Variance so, yes.
Phil Dee: So, 2 things, Number one does the Variance for conditional Use go with the property,
the parcel forever?
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Stuart Gilbert: Yes, they run with the land.
Phil Dee: They run with the land. So, that’s an issue then. Has the buyer closed on the property or
it’s just under contract?
Carl Whaley: Closed on it.
Phil Dee: So, if the Variance is not needed upon recombination, but the Variance goes forward
and eternity, then to me it’s not a reason to move forward with this and it should be a
recombination. Because applying for a Variance is going to be irrelevant, but the Variance goes
forward and the relevancy becomes a permanent. You see what I’m talking about? I do not know
the right words to describe it. One’s short term and ones long term.
Stuart Gilbert: Yeah, but it is just for the tower, it is not for anything specific.
Phil Dill: It is for something though, and that Variance is then in eternity.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: The ordinance as written, for the application for Variance requires
the applicant Verizon Wireless and me as Verizon Wireless’s attorney to prove certain things. I
can prove those things. I do not believe that once I offer testimony on this which I can do right
now. The Board would have grounds to deny the Variance. So, at the end of the day, whenever we
get to it, I think that the Variance issue is going to be a mood point either way. Which is why I
think we should just move forward with that. Part of that testimony is going to be the guy who
owns the land is the same guy. I do not represent the Whaley family at all. I represent Verizon
Wireless. We had no idea that he as an individual purchased the property because that’s not my
client. I just found out this evening as well. It’s 2 separate issues, 1 at the end of the day one of the
facts that will be in evidence, or is now in evidence is that the same individual owns the 2 parcels
of land.
Phil Dee: To me, it’s actually a mood point that we shouldn’t go forward with the Variance,
because the Variance is irrelevant.
Stuart Gilbert: Well it is at the moment, because he has not recombined, we cannot move forward
on the other one without issuing a Conditional Use Permit.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: We cannot force Mr. Whaley to do that. So, let’s move forward on
the Variance motion and you will hear the testimony. The Board can rule, and if the Board wants
to deny the Variance at that time we will figure out how to go join the 2 parcels of land. So, then
we can do conditional use for it, but I think we are all on the same page here. It could be very
easily accomplished. The Variance is specific to the tower itself, not anything else that could meet
the disrupted for eternity. I would request we move without hesitation for the Variance as
presented.
Stuart Gilbert: And when the petitioner request, the Board really doesn’t have a decision to say
no. You can vote on findings after all the evidence has been submitted, but you have to give the
petition its due process.
Phil Dee: The petitioner wants to move forward on the Variance?
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Stuart Gilbert: Let’s do that right now. And I guess you can move through here from the legal
petition. This exhibit identifies all those that were received on January 6th, 2021 notice of Variance.
There is an actual copy of it in, stop right there. The Variance’s proposed center is 75 mile of
power in setback 25ft. from the northern and western parcel boundaries, to mitigate concerns of
the tower not being in the 75% of the tower Hi-Setback. The tower is at 25ft. engineered fall back,
fall radius in event the tower fall, it will fall entirely within the apparent parcel. The requested
Variance is 106ft., 131 plus the 25ft. Setback. The location is 500 South Railroad Avenue. The
proposed wireless communication tower is to be located on property and Zoned Light Industrial,
and said property is surrounded by other industrial properties. The property is also identified by
Cleveland County, Parcel 13268. That is what was submitted, and that data say’s a copied
application may be obtained in the Planning Department, or they may call (704)734-4595 for
additional information. You are also allowed to attend the Public Board of Adjustment Hearing at
5:30 and express any opinion on the above case. So, that is Case # VA-1-7-20 with the Variance
on the Setback. Procedurally, I am just going to make sure that everybody keeps track of the
process. Which is, the Chairman is in charge of the testimony of petitioner and his team, the
testimony from all the abstaining, rebuttal from the testimony from the applicant, from anyone
including all Board members, rebuttal of testimony of people withstanding from the Board
members and all others, and after all your questions have been passed and closed the public
Hearing. So, you can have Board deliberation in the Public Hearing if you think you might have
questions. Then the Board determines, after you close the Public Hearing and deliberate, you
determine if all the findings have been met. A copy of the findings that the petitioner submitted
are on your table, I believe right now. So you can look at them without scrolling through the
paperwork. Through the Variance process the Board can determine through the Chairman if you
want to vote all at once findings are met or not met, or if you want to go 1 by 1 on those findings,
you can go that way. Whatever the Chair wants to do. Then the next item would be at the
conclusion of the Board, will authorize the Chair to draft and sign in a written order to be drafted
within 7 days to either approve the Variance, deny the Variance, continue the meeting, or if there
is a need for any other evidence. I think there is some other information on here we can go through.
The actual public notice, I do not think we have the actual affidavit yet. Do we Mr. Finnegan?
Brian Finnegan: I have not seen it yet.
Stuart Gilbert: So, we will end with here is the parcels, and the Variance signs on the property.
Part of that shows the subject property in general. There are multiple exhibits which I do have the
original that the new one was signed sometime in December. So, we have that in the file, and it is
included in your packet and is submitted online too. So, all that then is online. There is the visual
picture of the property, the Deed, Tax information, and then the actual application. There is the
table of contents that includes 10 items: The Certificate of Compliance, the City Application (that
includes other stuff too), the Land Lease Agreement (between Cell Post LLC and Cell Co
Partnership, DBA Verizon Wireless), and multiple statements and data in which I am not going to
read every one of them, because they are in the packet. All that was in the packet as can be
introduced into evidence at this meeting. You all saw the findings so the petitioner can speak to
those facts. The Staff really has nothing else to offer besides what was stated before that the
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recombination is a possibility, but it is not what is in front of you right now, the request is for the
Variance. I have nothing further unless you have questions.
Bill McMurray: Can you go to the site plan please?
Stuart Gilbert: You looking for a general photo of the?
Bill McMurray: I want to see the newly acquired property. I think it is the only adjacent parcel.
Stuart Gilbert: Yeah, if you go back one.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: It’s under Plat 4, and I am happy to address it.
Bill McMurray: So, it is the site bounded by Oak, Cansler, and the Elm St, but anyway it’s the
only adjacent parcel to this Parcel.
Chairman Potter: You have any other questions Mr. Gilbert? Anybody from the public wish to
make a comment? Questions?
Swear in
Tinelle Wallace: Do you Jewel Revis, swear to tell the truth the whole truth and nothing but the
truth so help you, God?
Jewel Revis: I do
Chairman Potter: State your name Please.
Jewel Rivas: Jewel Rivas, I live on Crescent Hill. I just wondered if it would impede any other
development in the area. Even though it is engineered to have a narrower call radius, will it impede
any other development round the area?
Chairman Potter: Anybody have an answer for her?
Bill McMurray: Staff would have to answer that.
Jewel Rivas: Is there any, you know some Cell towers are designed to be you know less noticeable.
Is there any other design built into it to make it less noticeable.
Stuart Gilbert: Actually the process is testimony first. We should really be with the petitioner
first. Hear the testimony from the petitioner first, he gives all his testimony then any testimony
from anybody else is given. Then there is a rebuttal from do you have any questions, or anything
else is asked late after all the testimony has been given from you, or whoever has standing can
provide rebuttals to whatever testimony that has been given, and the same thing with the petitioner.
The petitioner will be the one who will go.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I would also like to add that the question from the public at this time
seem to be more of a Conditional Use Permit than a Setback. The Variance is purely for a Setback
purpose. It is not for the land value or the aesthetic views of the tower. We are purely right now,
on the Variance to request a setback Variance from what the ordinance reads currently.
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Chairman Potter: State your name for the record please.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Josh Rotenstreich, I am here for Verizon Wireless DBA. I’m here
to request the Variance as Staff reported to the Board. The Variance we’re requesting is for a
Setback reduced down from the requirement of 75% of a tower height, down to 25ft. based on a
property line that is approximately 25ft. from the base of this tower to the West. As been introduced
into evidence previously, that property has now been purchased by the same land owner as we are
leasing the plot of land from. Currently, we are requesting a 175ft. Monopole tower. Which has a
Setback, with a fall zone designed specifically for this request of Variance of 25ft., meaning that
it will crumble upon itself? I would like to introduce testimony. The evidence will show to that
testimony, that just in the 4 factors that the Variance, Statue, and Ordinance address. The first, is
that we are to prove that there is an unnecessary hardship that would result from the strict
application of this ordinance. The second, is that hardship results from conditions that are
particular to the property such as location, size, or topography. The third, is that the hardship did
not result from the actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. And the last and fourth,
is that the request in Variance is consistent with the spirit purpose and intent of the ordinance that
exist. That spirit and intent we would argue is for public safety as were dealing with a fall zone of
a cellular tower. I would request Mrs. Melissa Allen to come to the podium, and I will examine
her through questions. Melissa Allen, please introduce yourself to the Board.
Melissa Allen: My name is Melissa Allen, and I represent Verizon Wireless.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen, how are you employed?
Melissa Allen: I am an employee of a company called Smart Link Group. We are a provider of
telecommunication services, and Verizon Wireless is our client.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And what specifically do you do for Smart Link Group?
Melissa Allen: I am a project manager.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And what type of projects do you manage?
Melissa Allen: I manage all different telecommunications projects, having to do with cell phones,
new cell tower construction, modifications and reconstruction of existing towers, and other various
modifications projects.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Will you please explain to the Board what, if any, unnecessary
hardship would result from the trip application of the Ordinance with regards to this particular
tower.
Melissa Allen: In order to meet the required Setback in the Ordinance the tower the tower would
have to be moved roughly 100ft. to the East and South. This move would face the tower in much
closer to the existing building on the subject property, and closer to a public right away. In addition,
if we move the tower, the tower would be in the middle of the buildings loading dock. An
alternative location on the property would move the proposed site to the North Western portion of
the property, that’s currently an open parking lot next to an electrical substation. Either of those
locations would create problems of future redevelopment of this property. And moving the tower
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to the parking lot, would allow us meeting Setbacks, it would also move the tower into surrounding
view of the residential properties to the North West.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen kind of went into some detail there which regards to the
hardships exist and why the specifics of this property, is that correct?
Melissa Allen: Correct
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And some of those reasons, if you again will just mention them with
regards to the specific location or alternate locations on this property.
Melissa Allen: The current location was agreed upon by Verizon and the property owner. To
minimize disturbance to their facility and the parking areas. If we move the tower it would place
the tower either in the middle of the loading dock, which would prevent the building from being
serviced by any sort of distribution. If we moved it to an alternative location on the property, it
would take up a significant portion of the open parking area. We would have to be significantly
far enough away from the electrical substation, and again we would be out in view of the residential
area.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen, are any of those hardships that you just mentioned a
result of actions taken from either the applicant Verizon Wireless, or the property owner?
Melissa Allen: No, the property-the location that we picked is the most logical given the limited
area of the property where a majority of the parcel is covered by a building. In addition, again the
proposal location actually minimizes the visual impact from the nearby residential area, and we
were very cognitive of the houses to the West, and we did our very best to limit and mitigate that
impact.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And in your experience in ordinances such as this that exist for
reasons like you said, with regard to the spirit purpose of those is to hide obtrusive views as well
for safety of the tower collapsing theory.
Melissa Allen: Yes, The Variance requested is to reduce the Setback requirement for the Northern
and Western property lines. To meet the engineered fall zone radius of 25ft. The tower is being
specifically designed for this parcel. It’s designed specifically to collapse upon itself in the unlikely
event of a failure. Because the tower will collapse upon itself it mitigates the dangers to the public
or adjourning properties. In addition the proposed location will be a good neighbor to screen the
base of the tower from most of the surrounding residential properties. Again to reduce the visual
impact. The location that we picked is in the corner of the property it is blocked by buildings to
the North, the North West, and the West. The only location from where you can actually see the
tower would actually be South from Elm Street and to the East from tower.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen is it your understanding that the property that is
adjoining this parcel, of which we are requesting a Setback, is now owned by the same individual
that we were leasing the land from to build the tower on?
Melissa Allen: Yes
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Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: No further questions for Mrs. Allen. I believe now procedurally, the
opposition would ask questions of Mrs. Allen, if there are any.
Chairman Potter: Anybody else? Are you through with your testimony?
Melissa Allen: Yes Sir.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I believe, if there is opposition they now would cross examine Mrs.
Allen, as to any questions they would have. Otherwise, Mrs. Allen would step down from the
stand, and we can move on to the next piece of evidence for the Variance from the application.
Chairman Potter: I was asking, does anybody else want to give testimony?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Yes Sir, no I mean, I think the applicant has no other testimony to
offer for this Variance. I think procedurally, if there is an opposition or public questions for Mrs.
Allen, this would be the time to ask while she is on the stand.
Chairman Potter: I just want to make sure, that there isn’t anybody else out there who wants to
give testimony. The lady has a question back there. Were on public input.
Jewel Rivas: How far is the location from the Railroad Right of Way?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Evidence that was presented, shows that there are Setback as long
with any other parcel of the land or any other objects of the towers highness. I do not know if you
Mrs. Allen, know specifically the distance to the railway?
Melissa Allen: I do not. I can tell you that it’s the entire width of our parcel, plus the road right of
way, until you get to the Rail Road Right of Way. It’s a significant distance.
Jewel Rivas: Do you have any evidence of reduced property values for the area?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Objection, that is irrelevant to a Setback area.
Jewel Rivas: It’s not irrelevant for a building permit.
Chairman Potter: What was the question?
Jewel Rivas: If there is any harm to property values in the area?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: It’s just not a standard that’s being asked to be introduced pursuant
to the Ordinance that were here to discuss at this time. I do believe that, that may be something to
address in the Conditional Use Permit, but as far as a 25ft. Setback Variance it’s not relevant to
what the law is.
Chairman Potter: Any others? Any Boards Men do you have any questions? Is there a motion to
close the open hearing?
Stuart Gilbert: You all are sure that there are no other questions, right?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: If I could just make the closing argument, I’ll do that and close
evidence with the applicant. Members of the Board it is our position as the applicant has shown
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all of the four requirements that Staff was required to show, and no opposition has been here to
offer any evidence to the contrary. The Board must now approve that Variance as the 4
requirements have been met, based on the testimony and evidence in front of the Board, including
the application which was submitted into evidence prior to testimony. And we would then press
the Board rule of Variance in favor of the applicant.
Chairman Potter: Can we close the hearing? From here are you all ready to close that? Do I hear
a motion?
Maury Williams: I make a motion that we close the hearing.
Chairman Potter: Do we have a second to that?
Phil Dee: Seconded the motion
Chairman Potter: All of those in favor raise your right hand. The vote was unanimous.
The Public Hearing is closed
Chairman Potter: Alright you’ve heard the finding of the facts, we’ve also heard that the
applicant is gained sufficient properties and to make this hearing a mood hearing. How are you
feeling about this proceeding?
Phil Dee: I say we vote on the findings of the fact.
Chairman Potter: You want to take them all at once or one at a time?
Phil Dee: I would say one at a time
Chairman Potter: One at a time?
Maury Williams: Yes Sir.
Chairman Potter: The first, is unnecessary hardship of the golf and strict application of
Ordinance. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that in the absence of the Variance. An
unreasonable use can be made of this property. Discussion.
Phil Dee: The finding of the facts says the hardship is a result from the strict application of the
Ordinance, but that applications irrelevant with the testimony they brought forward about they
bought the adjourning property. So, you know it’s a hardship, but is it an unnecessary hardship?
Because of the irrelevance of that, that was entered into evidence.
Chairman Potter: Any other Board members commenting? Do we have a motion one way or the
other on this first finding of the facts?
Maury Williams: I make a motion that we approve the first finding of the facts.
Chairman Potter: Motion made to approve.
Bill McMurray: Seconded the motion to approve the First Finding of the Facts.
Chairman Potter: Mr. McMurray seconded. All those in favor raise your right hand.
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Phil Dee: You have to have 4, that’s your vote.
Ronnie Franks: I don’t vote as the alternate.
The vote was 4-1 with Phil Dee against the motion.
Chairman Potter: The motion is now passed.
Chairman Potter: The second hardship result from the conditions to the problems of the property
such as location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, and from
hardships resulting from conditions common to the neighborhood for the general public may not
be the basis for granting the Variance. Comments?
Maury Williams: Mr. Gilbert?
Stuart Gilbert: I just had a question for the minute writer, was that 3-1? It was 1 against?
Phil Dee: It was 4 wasn’t it?
Stuart Gilbert: Ok, was it 4 votes.
Brian Finnegan: It was 4.
Stuart Gilbert: 4 for, and 1 against right? And Mr. Dee, was the only one that voted against.
Chairman Potter: Mr. Dee voted against.
Stuart Gilbert: Ok, I just wanted to make sure that was clear for the minute taker.
Chairman Potter: Alright the second finding of the facts. Any comments?
Bill McMurray: Motion to approve
Chairman Potter: Motion is on McMurray to approve.
Maury Williams: I second
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
The vote was 4-1 with Phil Dee against
Chairman Potter: Third finding of the facts, the hardship did not result in actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. The applicant purchased this property with the knowledge of that
circumstances exist that may justify the granting of the Variance shall not be regarded as the selfcreating hardship. Comments?
Maury Williams: Mr. Chair I make the motion that we approve.
Chairman Potter: Ok, we have a motion to approve, is there a second?
Bill McMurray: Seconded
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Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
The vote was 4-1 with Phil Dee against
Chairman Potter: In the fourth finding of the fact requested, the questioned Variance is consistent
with the spirit purpose and intent of the Ordinance such that public safety is secured and sustainable
justice is achieved. Any comments?
Phil Dee: Mr. Chairman I would like to make a motion that we accept the fourth fact requested.
Chairman Potter: Mr. Dee with the motion to accept
Bill Elliot: Seconded
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
The vote was unanimous
Chairman Potter: Ok, now we are moving to the Quasi-Judicial Case, CUP-1-7-20, 500 S
Railroad Ave., Tax Map KM 10, Block 4, and Lot 2. Staff report, Stuart?
Phil Dee: Does he need to reopen the Public Hearing?
Maury Williams: Yes
Stuart Gilbert: It doesn’t say it.
Phil Dee: It doesn’t say it, but if you look at number 10, it says close public hearing. So that gives
us 2 closings, and only 1 opening.
Stuart Gilbert: We need to fix that.
Phil Dee: That was the procedural complaint last time.
Maury Williams: So, you will have to open back into the Public Hearing?
Chairman Potter: Well we closed the Public Hearing.
Maury Williams: Now we will have to open back up before we go back into the Quasi-Judicial
Case.
Phil Dee: Is that right Staff?
Stuart Gilbert: Yeah
Chairman Potter: Is there a motion to open the Public Hearing.
Maury Williams: I make a motion
Phil Dee: Seconded
Stuart Gilbert: City Council does it different, when they have all the Public Hearings they keep
them all open and then they deliberate one at a time. Sorry about that, I will fix that next time.
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Public Hearing
Staff Report
Stuart Gilbert: This case is for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a miles it could fall. The 175ft.
cell tower is identified in all the documents. We ask by reference be included into evidence tonight
everything that was submitted on the City Council Website on multiple pages, everything from
the notice and application itself, and all the given testimony from the applicant. It’s for Verizon
Wireless proposes that wireless communication tower, a 2500ft. fence compound including
equipment, cabinets, and a generator. It’s all part of the special use permit if you allow specific
uses on the property. As a Conditional Use Permit, any questions related to design and aesthetics’
are allowed to be discussed. The purpose of this is to make sure that the findings of the facts are
listed, and you should have it in front of you, or Mr. Finnegan is getting it to you. It’s in the
application but were just going to give you a hand copy, I think it helps you as we go through the
process. This was written by a staff member. This application, there is some references to
Buncombe County, that’s what we used them for. I’m sure you smiled when you saw that, I sure
did, but it’s for the City of Kings Mountain whenever there is something that say’s Buncombe
County. So if that could be identified also, and we would make those official changes as this moves
forward. It was signed on December 18th, 2020. It has no other comments on there, we didn’t write
up much on this and the esthetics as far as the enclosure and all that is. Let me discuss the hours
of operation is unlike most Conditional Use Permits. This one can be 24 hours a day, and it is
going to be pretty much unmanned, and the applicant is here to answer all the questions that you
all might have and present testimony also.
Chairman Potter: Anything else Gilbert?
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Josh Rotenstreich again here for Verizon Wireless, and as the staff
mentioned this is our request to obtain a Conditional Use Permit for 175ft. monopole wireless
telecommunication facility associated equipment, and structure use. This is pursuant to the City of
Kings Mountain City Ordinance. Article 8-SR.19. SR.19 lays out several different facts that the
applicant must prove in order to have this request approved. I believe 10 of the 11 listed are
applicable and we will go through those through way of testimony, prior to doing that I would like
to introduce this based on the application that this is a 175ft. monopole tower with a 19ft. lightning
rod. The tower will be galvanized steel gray in color. The tower will be available for three
additional code locations. I don’t believe that’s a requirement in this particular ordinance but in
other counties and jurisdictions that is a requirement and it will not be addressed any more tonight
I don’t believe unless the Board has questions but essentially what that means is if another cell
phone provider chooses to come in here and wants to have service they are able to be on the same
tower rather than have another tower constructed. It can hold up to 4 other carriers at the same
time. Additionally the tower compound will be surrounded by an 8ft. chain length fence which is
pursuant to the ordinance. And that fence will be screened in by fabric and privacy slats. So as to
not only for safety purposes but to less obtrusive to the eye. I will call now Melissa Allen to the
podium to introduce testimony with regard to the 10 applicable facts that need to be addressed
here.
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Testimony
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen, would you please identify for the Board how the
proposed Conditional Use Permit will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing
or working in the neighborhood of the proposed area.
Melissa Allen: The proposed tower will conform to industry standards as well as meeting safety
standards meet by the federal, state, and local authorities. We have also included a non-interference
statement as part of Exhibit 7.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And I would refer the Board to Exhibit 7, FCC, and FAA with
regard to this, and also have the Board acknowledge its federal law that if you comply with FCC,
and FAA regulations with regard to health and safety regulations of these towers; That’s the only
standard we have to meet the Board cannot lower that standard for health and states regulations.
Based on current case law of federal court. Mrs. Allen, could you please explain to the Board how
the proposed Conditional Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to
property or public improvements in the neighborhood of neighborhood of the proposed
Conditional Use Permit.
Melissa Allen: The proposed tower is located on a property that is already zoned as Light
Industrial where a warehouse/factory is located. The adjacent property is also zoned Light
Industrial for the existing factory. The addition of a tower at the site is in conformity with the
current zoning use. In addition, the proposed tower will increase coverage to the surrounding
industry properties as well as nearby residential areas. We’ve included once again a noninterference statement as well as propagation maps from the RO engineers explaining the need for
coverage in the area.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And I would refer the Board to exhibit 7 of that Non-interference
statement from the FCC, and FAA compliance, as well as exhibit 8 for the propagation map. Mrs.
Allen, this tower not only supplies great new service for cellphone use, but it is also for emergency
services too, correct?
Melissa Allen: Absolutely
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And also in line with the Variance that was just passed with regard
to the Setback which also would fall within this requirement. Mrs. Allen, please explain to the
Board how the Conditional Use Permit will not cause, or have adverse effects on surrounding
properties due to noise, vibration, odor, or glare effects.
Melissa Allen: The tower doesn’t cause any additional noise to surrounding properties other that
what is already there at the facility currently. The monopole shall be constructed of galvanized
steel gray in color to mitigate any glare and further to blend into the surroundings.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen, please explain to the Board the Ingress and Egress of
the property and proposed structure.
Melissa Allen: The tower has a 30ft. wide access easement from the public right of way (Elm
Street), across the existing page, and gravel parking area along with a turnaround area in front of
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the proposed wireless facility fenced compound. The tower and equipment will be housed within
a 50’x50’ fenced compound surrounded by a security fence for the safety of the public.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And will you please indicate with the Board, the off street loading
and parking area on the proposed site.
Melissa Allen: As stated the proposed access easement also includes a turnaround area in the front
of the tower compound.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I point to the Board exhibit 4 that shows the aerial view with the
proposed turnaround in front of the site. Mrs. Allen, please testify to the Board as to how adequate
property utilities with regards to location availability and compatibility are provided, or how the
items are not applicable to this Conditional Use Permit.
Melissa Allen: Verizon will bring in power and fiber and will be routed underground within
conduit that will be installed within our 30ft. access and utility easement going out to the public
right of way. There is no water proposed, there won’t be any water or sewer service at all. The
construction drawings were submitted as exhibit 4.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Mrs. Allen, please indicate to the Board how buffering with
reference to type, locations, and dimensions will be provided, or how it is not applicable to the
proposed Conditional Use Permit.
Melissa Allen: Buffering is not required in the Light Industrial Zoning District, but the fence
compound will include fence screening fabric along the low-grade privacy slats to minimize the
visual impact.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Members of the Board, I believe there were some photographs of
the proposed similar type fence. We’ll come back to that. Mrs. Allen, please indicate to the Board
how if any proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffic safety, and economic effect
will be compatible and harmonious with properties in the area.
Melissa Allen: The telecommunications facility will not be lit. There will be signs posted on the
fence, they don’t contain any lighting. The fence compound won’t be lit, however if the FAA
requires it we would use lighting on the tower, but again only if FAA requires it.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And currently does the FAA require that?
Melissa Allen: They don’t.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Number 9 is one with playgrounds, open spaces, etc. Mrs. Allen,
please describe buildings structure, location, size, and use and how this propos ability will be
combatable with the surrounding neighborhood, or how the items listed are not applicable to the
Conditional Use Permit.
Melissa Allen: Most of the towers located on light industrial parcels surrounded by other light
industrial parcels. It’s in conformity with the immediate area as an industrial area, and it will
benefit and improve cellular service to not only the industrial area but the surrounding residential
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area. I could also point out that the zoning code specifically requires the towers be located in
industrial areas.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And finally Mrs. Allen, please describe to the Board the hours of
operation of this particular tower.
Melissa Allen: The tower will operate 24/7, 365 days a year. It is an unmanned facility. It will be
visited by maintenance technician once or twice a month probably. There’s no office, there’s no
facility, so there won’t be anyone on-site on a regular basis.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I have no further questions for Mrs. Allen.
Chairman Potter: Does anybody else out there want to give any testimony? Does anybody have
questions they would like to bring up?
Maury Williams: Mrs. Allen, you did mention that you don’t know if the FAA requires lights to
be on that tower at night or not?
Melissa Allen: I don’t personally have knowledge of that.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: The FAA does not require lighted towers below 200ft. I believe the
way that the application was written is that if that changes they will supply strobe lights to meet
that requirement, but it’s below 200ft. currently.
Melissa Allen: That would be very unusual.
Chairman Potter: Does anyone else have any questions? Any comments? Are we ready to close
the vote here?
Bill McMurray: I would like to make a motion to conditional.
Jewel Revis: I’m sorry I have a few questions.
Maury Williams: She’s got a few questions.
Jewel Revis: Sorry, I wasn’t sure when the right time was. Is there still going to be public
comments before City Council or I this the final hearing.
Stuart Gilbert: This is final.
Jewel Revis: I realize the property is zoned for light industrial but along this neighborhood and
the Crescent Hill area, I just really think it should be located in a more rural area. A little bit further
out from town.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: Objection, the evidence that she is introducing its, all of her opinion
testimony is where she thinks the tower should be, and is not evidence to be introduced. Just noting
for the record.
Jewel Revis: I just have concerns about how it will affect our neighborhood and the City
downtown in general.
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Chairman Potter: Anybody else?
Bill McMurray: I would like to make a motion to condition. The approval of the Conditional Use
Permit by making the applicant make an attempt to minimize the visual impact of the pole in a
manner as seen in other locations.
Chairman Potter: Is that appropriate?
Stuart Gilbert: It’s not inappropriate.
Bill McMurray: It is legal in a Conditional Use Permit to make conditions, and that’s my
condition that I would like to make a motion for the Board to approve prior to the approval of the
Conditional Use Permit.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: If I may, I would like to make some closing comments from the
applicant before the Board rules, and I am happy to address that motion as well. I don’t know that
that’s one that would be an issue. If I may turn to the Board we do believe that we have proven our
facts that are necessary to have this Conditional Use Permit granted. I would say to address the
Boards’ motion, I believe you are talking about the one that’s called Monopine tower. They’re
designed to look like trees. Well, we have found in counties were we have put those up, not saying
it can’t happen, people are actually unhappy with those because while it is an idea that yes we can
make this look like a tree, It doesn’t look like a tree. It stands significantly taller than other trees,
and it has assorted branches like you see coming down 85 north, and other areas. And what we’ve
found that people or counties are unhappy with that rather than just a monopole tower which has
some equipment on top. If the Board rules that the condition would be to design it based on a
monopine design, I don’t think, I think that you are right Sir, that the Board has the ability to do
that and put that condition on this Conditional Use Permit. I do think you may get what you wish
for and it may be a little more obtrusive than what you are thinking. The testimony offered by the
applicant as well as contained in here does state that this tower with the location we have selected
on the property is the least obtrusive, and least viewable from any of the surrounding roads in the
area. And it is designed with the galvanized steel and low-tone gray to blend in as much as possible.
So, with regard to that specific motion that is all we have to say, but again that’s not an unfixable
issue.
Bill McMurray: Let me modify the request by saying if there are any other modifications that
don’t look like an artificial pine tree, I would like to be open for that suggestion you are implying.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: And I am not sure that there are any, that there is technology that
exist, that make things look like that. I have no evidence to introduce with regards to what you
could turn a monopole into. I do believe based on the requirements under the law and what we put
in the application along with the fact, there is no opposition in confident testimony that’s been here
to dispute what has been introduced. We have meet the requirements as required by the ordinance
and exist currently, and the Board should approve based on law of our Conditional Use Permit.
Thank you.
Chairman Potter: Mr. McMurray was that a formal motion or is that…..

18

Bill McMurray: I am asking for the Board, I am making a motion for the Board to…
Chairman Potter: We need to close the public hearing then.
Stuart Gilbert: You don’t have to, you can make the motion inside the public hearing.
Bill McMurray: Maybe the Board has other ideas of how to minimize the impact, because you
know the screening that the applicant is talking about, only screens the base. Which is what 10ft.
high?
Stuart Gilbert: 8ft. total.
Phil Dee: Bill, can I offer to you, you know think about if you’re going to put a conditional use in
there it’s got to be specific. Because just asking them to consider the possibility may be the intent
of looking at something, but doesn’t do any good. We had the same problem with AT&T about
10-12 years ago where they were asked to consider and look at it. They said, “Absolutely”, and
then did nothing. So, the conditional use wasn’t a condition, it was more of a request. So, if you
put something in like that, it’s got to be, it’s got to have, it’s got to be a definitive request for it to
be a part of the conditional use.
Bill McMurray: I am just trying make the applicant have to do it, but give them some leeway in
however they want to disguise it.
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I think the problems that you will find is that the location, there
aren’t even trees in this area. For example, (I don’t know a lot about this, it’s for discussion
purposes) there would be potentially taken off and putting in a flag pole, or something like that but
that just doesn’t exist for Verizon’s technology. Additionally, I don’t think that your request to go
outside of what exist currently is in line of what the law is regards to the ordinance. I do think if
you want a monopole top monopine tower, and you want to see a picture of that, I don’t know if
that’s an unreasonable request. But you’re having a pole that’s 175ft. in the air with fake branches
on it in a middle of a field, or a concrete industrial area. I mean it would look very unsightly, and
less in place than just a regular monopole tower. Which is why we suggested the monopole tower.
I don’t think that there is, I don’t see how you can make a demand for technology that doesn’t
exist, or for a way to adapt to your condition if it isn’t the one that exist currently.
Jewel Revis: I have another question. I’m new to the planning part of the city, is there other
recourse or public input after this meeting to object to the location of this tower?
Chairman Potter: No
Phil Dee: Staff would answer that.
Chairman Potter: Mr. Gilbert?
Stuart Gilbert: This is a Quasi-Judicial Hearing. Which means that it unlike all the other things
you are probably use too where usually there is testimony in front of the Board of Adjustment, or
the Planning and zoning Board. And then it goes to City Council, and the City Council has a public
hearing and after their public hearing which has testimony. Then there’s usually rebuttal for it, but
in this case this is a Board of adjustment Quasi-Judicial, it’s almost like being a Judge so that’s
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why you are hearing all this from the Attorney is saying objection, because there’s not a Judge
here, but its treated with evidence only and not to be treated with opinions. So, that’s why it’s
probably foreign to you right now, because we don’t have that many of these kinds of cases that’s
just Board of Adjustments with Variances or Conditional Use Permits. Does that make sense to
you?
Jewel Revis: That all makes sense, but that doesn’t answer my question. Is this a done deal at the
end of this day, as far as this tower being built in this location?
Stuart Gilbert: Then if the Board says no then after 7 days, I can answer that in 2 ways, if the
Board says no to this then within 7 days there will be an action written order sent to the petitioner.
The petitioner has 30 days to go to Superior court. In other words, he can get remedied, if he
doesn’t get his remedy here he can go directly to the Superior Court. If the petitioner is successful
with the application then that decision will be approved, and then take a, I am not an attorney. I
guess if you have some standing….
Attorney Josh Rotenstreich: I don’t think public opinion has standing to challenge the Board of
Adjustments ruling.
Stuart Gilbert: I don’t think so.
Maury Williams: Mrs. Revis if I could add one more thing to, as one of the newest members of
this Board. I will tell you, our decision tonight is not based on personal opinion. It’s based solely,
solely on the law. So, please if you don’t take anything else from here tonight.
Jewel Revis: I understand that.
Maury Williams: Ok
Jewel Revis: It’s based on the zoning.
Maury Williams: Right
Stuart Gilbert: And the special regulations for it.
Jewel Revis: And I do agree with you, there is no way to hide a 175ft. pole. It’s just going to be
in my back yard though.
Chairman Potter: Is there any other comments.
Bill McMurray: Well if the Board thinks that the proposal to make it look like pine tree is worse
than just the pole, then I will withdraw my motion, but it’s based on what the Board thinks. Should
we make an attempt to minimize the visual impact of it or should we….
Chairman Potter: Were still in public hearing now so.
Bill McMurray: I am talking about the condition that I’m proposing.
Maury Williams: Right
Bill McMurray: I can do that at this time right?

20

Stuart Gilbert: Yeah, you can still talk.
Maury Williams: Yeah, Yeah.
Stuart Gilbert: You are allowed to Mr. Chairman, if you would like to.
Chairman Potter: Yeah, I would, I just want to make sure that they understand that it is still a
public hearing.
Stuart Gilbert: Yes Sir.
Chairman Potter: Anybody else? Is there a motion to close the public hearing?
Maury Williams: I make a motion that we close the public hearing.
Chairman Potter: is there a second to that motion?
Bobby Elliot: Seconded
Chairman Potter: All in favor raise your right hand. Mr. McMurray, did you vote against it?
Bill McMurray: Well not… I need to get clarification on my motion before I can close it. If we
close it then does my motion die?
Maury Williams: You did rescind it right?
Bill McMurray: Well, I gave the Board the ability to do that, if the Board thinks that the attempt
to minimize the impact is worse.
Maury Williams: I took it as the Board did not comment that we were ok with it being rescinded.
That’s the way I took it, that’s why I made the motion to close.
Phil Dee: Yeah, I concur with that.
Bill McMurray: I agree with the motion to close.
The vote to close the hearing was unanimous
Public Hearing Closed
Chairman Potter: Ok, any comments from the Board? Alright any comments from the faculty
staff? Ok, let’s start with the findings of the facts. You want to vote on all of them at once?
Bill McMurray: Didn’t we already do that?
Maury Williams: I am kind of confused about this too, but I would say to do all three
simultaneously.
Phil Dee: I thought we voted for the affirmative on all 4 findings of fact earlier?
Stuart Gilbert: That’s Variance, and this is for the conditional.
Maury Williams: Conditional, Yeah.
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Phil Dee: But is it the same four findings of fact?
Maury Williams: It’s the same 4
Stuart Gilbert: They had 11, but the application, conditional use finding of factors.
Attorney Josh Rhodenstrike: I think we’ve broken down for that.
Bill McMurray: I make the motion to accept those 4.
Maury Williams: Seconded
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
The vote was unanimous
Chairman Potter: Is there is a motion from the Board to authorize to draft and sign a written
order to be drafted within 7 days to approve Variance.
Phil Dee: Mr. Chair I would like to make a motion that we would authorize the Chair in 7 days do
the official written notification of the Conditional Use Permit.
Chairman Potter: Is there a second to that?
Maury Williams: I second
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
The vote was unanimous
Chairman Potter: Any other items to bring before the court? Is there a motion to adjourn?
Maury Williams: I would like to make a motion that we adjourn.
Bill McMurray: Seconded
Chairman Potter: All those in favor raise your right hand.
Meeting Adjourned.
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